Robert S. Jaret
20 Mistletoe Lane, Novato, CA 94945

July 22, 2015

Re: Personal Objections to Black Point Community Plan Staff Report
Dear Commissioners:

Please accept this letter as a personal objection to the content of the Staff Report as it relates
to the name of the Plan, and the option concerning home size. The Community plan should be that
of Black Point which is the title of the 1978 Plan, and is based on the designation of Black Point
as both a legal boundary and historical boundary.

I am a member of the Advisory Committee for the update of the Black Point Community
Plan, and also a member of the Board of Directors of the Black Point Improvement Club. However,
the comments in this letter are from me personally.

The following are the reasons why the name of the Plan should not be modified:

1. Staff and the Committee were tasked with updating the Black Point Community Plan, as
opposed to redefining the name of the Community. The Advisory Committee, as well as
the Black Point Improvement Club, voted to preserve the name of the Black Point
Community Plan.

2. There is no objective evidence that based on “feedback”, “common interest” or the name
change being “generally supported”, the name of the Community should be changed.
Rather, Staff has no legitimate basis to state that the hundreds of residents that live on the
north side of Highway 37 desire to be part of a separate community.

3. Black Point has a rich history which should be preserved. This history has been
documented in the Novato Township book, published by the Novato Historical Guild in
1989. A copy of the Black Point chapter is attached for your review. There is no reference
to Green Point in this chapter. There was a Black Point Post Office from 1865 until 1891.
It was later renamed the Grandview Post Office in 1905 but changed back to Black Point
in 1944 until it was discontinued in 1952. The name “Black Point” is thought to have
originated because of the dense growth of timber gave such a dark appearance to that point
of land when observed from across the Bay. Its site on the Petaluma River attracted both
hunters and fishermen to Black Point. The 1888 Marin Journal reported that the Napa and
Marin Railroad was “bridging Petaluma Creek... and a gang of builders are at present
engaged in building a one-ender drawbridge of novel method of construction over Novato
Creek.” Black Point extended to the area known as Dear Island, off of Olive Avenue. The



Black Point Inn was a popular destination until it burned down in the Spring of 1976. Most
believe that it was built during the 1890s.

This rich history should not be undermined by the vested interest of but a few
homeowners.

4. The Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO), created by the California Legislature
in 1963, has the authority to change legal boundaries. It is inappropriate to do so in such a
casual and inconsistent manner.

5. The only Community Plan of the 23 that exist that combines 2 communities is the
Kentfield/Greenbrae Community Plan. It is unknown whether there was any objection to
combining the 2 communities. However, those 2 communities are individually identifiable.
For example, Kentfield is the home of a Community College and a County Hospital. There
are no similar compelling reasons to include Green Point as part of the name of the Plan.
Rather, Green Point should be identified on the front page of the Plan as a neighborhood
in Black Point.

6. Combining the communities creates inconsistencies that cannot be reconciled. By trying to
appease a few homeowners by changing the name it has unintended consequences. For
example, I live in the Gridiron neighborhood of Black Point. I would now live in the Black
Point neighborhood of Black Point, which is not logical. Originally, Staff “hyphenated”
Black Point and Green Point. In the latest rendition the communities are separated by the
word “and”. This denotes that there are two separate communities. On page 23 of the draft
Plan, it states that the Black Point and Green Point community enjoys...” The grammar is
incorrect because the logic does not follow. There is either one community or two
communities. Some of the residents in the Green Point neighborhood have indicated a
desire to be completely separate and to have their own Community Plan. I am unaware of
any Green Point organizations that exist other than a security committee, but if there is
such a support then these residents should take the appropriate effort to create a separate
community. Changing the name of the Plan does not satisfy their concerns, and is
objectionable to many residents in Black Point.

The following are the reasons why Option 2 regarding home size should be adopted:

1. The Community has supported Option 2 as a reasonable method of expressing a concern
of maintaining the character of their neighborhood. Both the Advisory Committee and the
Black Point Improvement Club voted to adopt Option 2.

2. Option 2 provides that new construction shall not exceed the median floor area ratio within
600 feet of the surrounding neighborhood by more than 10%, but there are other variables
that permit larger construction. Based on a detailed analysis by a Committee tasked with
formulating this Option, there are no onerous limitations on development. Rather, the



Advisory Committee and the Black Point Improvement Club have encouraged
development.

. The Planning Commissioners previously reviewed Option 2 at the Workshop and five of
the six Commissioners present thought that it was a very good idea.

. The reasoning in the Staff Report for rejecting Option 2 is that public records relied upon
may not be accurate, or that compiling data will add to staff time and may increase the cost
of Design Review Applications. In contrast, by providing clear guidelines to a developer it
may reduce disputes and ultimately decrease staff time. It is also speculation that available
data is incorrect or that it would result in any meaningful discrepancies.

. After working on Option 2 for well in excess of 1 year without any objection, Staff
determined that a deviation from the norm will create additional work and therefore
suggested a NEW Option 3. This option limited new single-family residences or additions
in the “Black Point” area to 2000 f1.2, and in the “Green Point” area to 3000 ft.2. Such a
blanket limitation is precisely what the Advisory Committee, and the Black Point
Improvement Club did not want to promulgate. Each site is different and must be evaluated
on its own merits.

Conclusion.

The Black Point Community originates from the Village of Black Point and it should
maintain its character which is a benefit not only to the immediate community, but the City
of Novato, and the County of Marin. The desires of the Community to provide reasonable
guidelines for new construction as identified in Option 2 should be adopted and is also
consistent with maintaining the character of the Community. The neighborhoods of “Black
Point” and “Green Point” in reality are virtually identical with respect to geography,
geology, and the proximity to and respect for nature. The minor differences do not justify
dividing this wonderful community.

"Robert S. Jaret
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BLACK POINT

East of Novato’s city line, there is a
quiet little village known as Black Point.
Longtime residents who love their rural
life style have resisted the intrusion of
developers over the years. Despite the
vigilance of local groups, new homes con-
tinue to proliferate the Black Point hills.

The name “Black Point” is thought to
have originated because the dense
growth of timber gave such a dark appear-
ance to that point of land when observed
from across the Bay. Some have said it
was named after James Black who owned
considerable property in Marin County,
but that story is untrue according to
Black’s great granddaughter, Miss Char-
maine Burdell. Black Point was called
Grandview in 1905, by a developer named
Danmeyer, who felt the name had more
“class” and would help promote sales.

There was a Black Point Post Office
from 1865 until 1891. According to histo-
rian and author Louise Teather, a Grand-
view Post Office started in 1905, so that
name was apparently official and not just
an advertising gimmick. It was changed
back to Black Point in 1944 and the Post
Office branch was discontinued altogeth-
er in 1952. Black Point residents receive
their mail today via the Novato Post Office.

Black Point was originally part of the
Rancho de Novato land grant. The 1880
History of Marin County by Alley, Bowen
& Co., speaks of a “man named Day” who
in 1851 “settled on an island in Novato
township which has since borne his
name.” Day Island in Black Point is now
part of Marin County Open Space Dis-
trict. The 1880 History goes on to tell of

Opening of the Black Point Highway Bridge, 1917. Little Enid Porcella presented a bouquet of flowers to Governor

Stephens and Mrs. Martha Lewis sang. The counterweight for opening the bridge had not yet been instailed.
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other settlers moving into the Black
Point area in 1853. Some were legitimate
landowners, however there was an ongo-
ing problem with squatters everywhere.

Pioneers in Black Point were woodcut-
ters, a few dairy farmers, and some ship-
builders. Wood from Black Point was used
to make the “knees” for the Saginaw, a
side-wheel steamer built at Mare Island
Navy Yard in 1858. The Saginaw served
the United States in foreign seas until
she struck a reef near Ocean Island on a
voyage to San Francisco in 1870. The crew
took refuge on the Island and most were
rescued weeks later.

Its site on the Petaluma River
attracted both hunters and fishermen to
Black Point. Vacationers built summer
cottages there.

Sometime during the last half of the
19th century, that portion of the Novato
Rancho became known as the Black Point
Ranch. The 1888 Marin Journal reported
the purchase of the 6000+ acre Black
Point Ranch by a Mr. Chase, who divided
the area east of the County Road (now
Redwood Boulevard) into over 800 “vil-
lage” lots. The streets were named for
prominent citizens, also fruit and orna-
mental trees. Mr. Chase formed the Home
and Farm Company, with himself as prin-
cipal owner, to handle the many tasks
required to prepare the property before
sales could begin. It was quite an under-
taking to survey the 6000 acres, dike the
marshlands and plan what was promoted
as the “new town of Novato.”

In 1889, the Sausalito News wrote in
the Novato column “The Home and Farm
Company will soon have a crew of twenty-
five cutting wood on Black Point. The
intention is to rid the Point of its wood
which will be quite an undertaking.” In
1895, the Marin Journal reported rapid
development and considerable land sold
by the Home and Farm Company in the

Black Point District. A few months later,
the following appeared in the Journal:

“Ex-Governor Machin, agent of the
Novato Home and Farm Company, is
meeting with good success in disposing of
small tracts to home seekers on the
famous Black Point Ranch.

(Thomas N. Machin actually served as
California’s Lt. Governor from 1964 to
1968.)

There is one bit of Black Point, the
older part on the southern end, that may
never be developed. Around the time the
Home and Farm Company was acting as
agent for Mr. Chase, an encyclopedia
salesman decided to boost the sale of his
books by “throwing in” a 2500 sq.ft. Black
Point lot with every encyclopedia order.
By the time his “special” ended, he had
collected 1200 orders. The heirs of the
original buyers can’t build on their lots
because the current zoning laws require

Black Foint Inn guests in 1906 leaving to board train for return trip
home. Priest held Mass on the front porch of the Inn for the guests.
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On Black Point Highway Bridge during dedication

a minimum of two acres. Some lots have
been sold for back taxes.

That area known as Deer Island,
between Olive Avenue and the Black
Point Cutoff, really was an island around
the turn of the century. The house owned
by Antonio DeBorba was surrounded by
water and could be reached only by row-
boat. When Mr. DeBorba couldn’t get the
State or County to build a dike, he did it
himself, paying a dredger $100 a day to
deepen the creek. Mr. DeBorba spent
thousands of dollars for a pump to take
the water out of the marsh. He also
donated the land for the wagon road
which later became Highway 37.

Business was modest in Black Point
with just a general store and the Black
Point Inn. The latter provided multiple
services and was a landmark before it
burned down in the Spring of 1976. Most
believe it was built during the 1890’s and

as long as it stood, the historic old Inn was
a popular meeting place for locals and
city folk. Politicians or lovers seeking
privacy, families, fishermen, hikers —
Black Point Inn met all of their needs.
There were 10 hotel rooms upstairs and
on the first floor was a Rosewood bar, a
restaurant, Post Office and a grocery
store.

Mors. Louis Nave (the former Mae Miller)
bought the Inn in 1908 and ran it for almost
40 years. She had her living quarters in
theback. It passed through several more
owners before the fire destroyed it.

The 1888 Marin Journal reported the
Napa and Marin Railroad was “bridging
Petaluma Creek...and a gang of builders
are at present engaged in building a one-
ender drawbridge of novel method of con-
struction over Novato Creek.” First man
placed in charge of opening and closing
the bridge was a Black Point pioneer,
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John Brink. One of his successors, Mr.
Bobo, was killed accidentally on the
bridge. He had to come down from the
house up above in order to close the
bridge. One day on the way down, he slip-
ped on the metal stairs and fell uncon-
scious into the water. His body was found
two weeks later.

A branch line of the railroad was built
off the main line at Ignacio, crossed the
Petaluma River at Black Point over a
railroad bridge, then went on to Sonoma
and Glen Ellen. Historian Florence Don-
nelly said “Black Point was a stopping

point, with drawbridge tenders and other
railroaders living there.

Before World War I, visitors came by
the trainload for dancing and picnics.
(Later on, its secluded location made the
Inn an ideal roadhouse during prohibi-
tion.) When the daily mail train stopped
at Black Point, it was a signal for local
residents to meet at the bar or on the Inn’s
porch to catch up on the news.

The general store is still there along
with a few new businesses, but nothing
can replace the old Black Point Inn.

Black Point Inn as it appeared about 1960
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